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[bookmark: _Toc448993430]Administrative
1. [bookmark: _Ref431390881]Q:	How do I get to the webcast?
A:	A recording of the workshop presentation, question and answer document, and workshop presentation, can be found at: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/pier.html#GFO-16-506 
2. Q:	We would like to request the deadline for the solicitation be extended past December 2nd.
A:	Please see Addendum 1 and page 12 of the solicitation manual for this solicitation. The Application Due Date has been extended to Monday, December 19, 2016 at 5 p.m.
3. Q:	If my Subcontractors are not finalized, how do they need to be identified in the budget? 
A:	Applicants should provide as much detail as is available to them in their application. However, if subcontractors have not been finalized prior to the submittal of a proposal, the budget can include ‘TBD’ in lieu of a subcontractor name. Subcontractors can be finalized should an applicant receive funding. 
4. Q:	Does the prime contractor need to be a CBE? Headquartered in CA?
A: 	No, a prime does not need to be a California Based Entity (CBE) or headquartered in California, but preference points may be awarded to passing proposals that meet the criteria for California Based Entities. Please see attachment 12 for CBA eligibility requirements.
5. Q:	Would cash in-hand and volunteer labor hours qualify under match funding?
A: 	Yes. Please refer to Pages 7-8 of the Application Manual for more details on what qualifies for match finding.
6. Q:	The proposal specifies a minimum funding amount of $750k. What if proposal is for $700k?
A: 	It does not qualify under this solicitation. The intent of this solicitation is to focus on larger integration and demonstration projects in order to maximize the benefits of a project. Smaller scale projects should consider expanding their project in order to meet minimum funding requirement.
7. Q:	If we have a patent-pending technology, will details need to be disclosed?
A: 	Applicants should not provide any confidential information in their proposal, but are encouraged to provide sufficient information on their project to ensure the scoring team can properly evaluate against the scoring criteria.



8. Q:	How are the funds dispersed to the recipient?
A: 	The Energy Commission pays grant recipients in arrears and reimburses recipients for actual costs for work completed. Recipients can invoice the Energy Commission up to once a month. Please refer to the standard applicable PIER terms and conditions at the following link for more information: http://www.energy.ca.gov/research/contractors.html 
9. Q: 	Is there any requirement for the number of subcontractors that can be included in the budget? 
A: 	No.
10. Q:	Can the awards be combined into one application that completes demonstrations in each three regions?  The maximum award of $1.5m is not sufficient to complete some HHP projects.

A: 	Applicants can submit proposals for multiple groups; however, the Energy Commission reserves the right to choose only one of multiple similar projects submitted in order to avoid funding duplicative research tasks.

11. Q:	Do engines have to be certified at a Tier 4 level at the time of the demonstration?

A: 	No. Projects should aim to exceed Tier 4, especially when using low NOx on-road engine technology and information on achieving certification should be included in the Commercialization and Certification Plan.
12. Q:	Are out-of-state test facilities allowed? 

A: 	Out-of-state research and testing is allowed for this solicitation, however vehicle demonstration must be completed in one of the three groups identified on page 13 of the application manual.
13. Q:	Can you please provide clarification on Ports not being in disadvantaged communities?

A: For the purpose of this solicitation, California Ports and Military Bases that are adjacent to disadvantaged communities will be considered for preference points with appropriate justification. Please see Addendum 1 and page 12 of the solicitation manual for this solicitation for recent revisions regarding this item.

14. Q:	Are there bonus points for a quicker completion date?

A: 	No.

15. Q:	Can the forms from the original solicitation (GFO-16-501) be used for this solicitation?

A: 	Yes. The same attachments are being used for this solicitation. Please be sure that all headers and footers, and label attachments reflect the new solicitation number (GFO-16-506).

16. Q:	Why was the original solicitation cancelled?

A: 	GFO-16-501 was cancelled due to a limited response. The purpose of re-releasing this solicitation under GFO-16-506 was to provide clarification on and modify certain requirements with the understanding that the off-road sector has specific barriers that need to be addressed for the successful introduction of natural gas.
General
17. Q:	Can you please provide clarification on the requirement for OEM involvement? There are only a      few OEMS available.

A: 	It is difficult to ensure market introduction and commercial viability without an OEM partnership. It is at the applicant’s discretion to describe the relationship with the OEM in order to achieve success. Please refer to project requirements on page 13 of the solicitation manual.
18. Q:    Is a prototype engine required?
A: 	Production-ready prototype engines qualify under this solicitation and engines do not have to be commercially available to be eligible.
19. [bookmark: _Toc448993431]Q:    Whose property is the prototype at the end of the project?
A: The disposition of the prototype is evaluated at the end of the project. Please refer to Page 12 of the PIER Standard Terms and Conditions under Section 12 Equipment or other applicable PIER Terms and Conditions.

20. Q:	The question is whether non-US entity can apply, providing the fact that it will set up the US entity but only after unlocking the grant funding.
A:	This solicitation is open to all private and public entities.  However please see the Secretary of State registration requirement in Section II.A.3. on page 11 of the solicitation manual.  
21. Q:	I was told to ask about having another webcast since the audio was extremely poor.  The host was not close enough to the microphone and we were all muted and could not let anyone know that we could not hear the host.  I also tried the “chat” and no one was reading it during the presentation. Will the Commission consider hosting another pre-application workshop to cover this content? 
A:	Staff re-recorded the presentation to ensure audio quality. A recording of the workshop presentation, as well as the presentation are provided on the GFO page and can be found at:  http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/pier.html#GFO-16-506 
22. Q:	In the solicitation manual, it says the following is encouraged:  "Select fleets for demonstration that have existing off-road vehicle fleets with equivalent engines that can be directly compared to the natural gas off-road vehicles being demonstrated in order to provide current and relevant comparison data."  We will be producing RNG at a dairy farm in Modesto, and the farmers have a couple of feed trucks that they'd be interested in converting to CNG use.  Would asking for funds to convert both trucks and not have a truck for comparison be a liability? Or would it be advantageous to ask for funds to convert one of them and use the second truck as comparison?
A: 	There are no requirements to maintain a conventional fueled vehicle – baseline information can be obtained before conversion. How a project proposes to establish baseline information is at the discretion of the applicant.  Keep in mind, ratepayer benefits and market opportunities that require ARB certification should be considered.
23. Q:   The solicitation states, "Projects should incorporate advanced low emission engine technology      currently available for heavy-duty on-road vehicles".  Would a dual fuel technology be eligible?  For example, American Power Group sells dual fuel technology that enables the heavy-duty truck to run on CNG most of the time but that has the capacity to switch back to diesel if the CNG is exhausted.
A: 	Dual-Fuel is allowed, but Bi-Fuel is not encouraged. Applicant should describe details such as dual-fuel ratios and limits in technology when CNG runs out.
24. Q:	I noticed that some of the content appears to be different from the initial GRANT FUNDING document, so please help us with the followings:
· Can we get an electronic copy of the workshop material presented today?
A:	The workshop presentation has been posted online with the other solicitation documents. Please visit the following link for access to the workshop presentation: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/GFO-16-506/
· Can you list the differences in the workshop and the initial document to avoid any confusion?  Should we prioritize the requirement shown in the workshop if there are differences from the content in the initial grant document?
A:	The differences between the original solicitation (GFO-16-501) and the new solicitation (GFO-16-506) are included in the workshop presentation on slides 15 and 16. The workshop presentation can be accessed at: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/pier.html#GFO-16-506
	Proposals should respond to the content and requirements in the solicitation manual (GFO-16-506).
· Is it possible to submit proposals from each Group, such as one for Group I and another from Group III?
A:	Yes, however separate proposals must be submitted for each group indicating the distinction in demonstration sites.
· In terms of OEM manufacturers, or chassis integration, is it possible to team with a manufacturer outside California or overseas?   And any requirement for the use of US only content?
A:	No, there is not a requirement for OEM manufacturers to be based in the United States; however, all vehicle demonstration work must be completed in California.
· Is a retrofit technology (in lieu of complete new natural gas engine) that can substantially improve the existing natural gas engine and exceed current Tier 4 emission standard (reducing the emission) also eligible for this grant and considered as the development of a natural gas engine?
A:	Retrofit technology that can meet ARB certification requirements for Tier 4 is eligible. Applicants should describe how the technology will exceed Tier 4 requirements in the Commercialization and Emission Certification Plan. 
· Will the proposal receive higher scores or additional points under the scoring criteria for the demonstration of vehicles in several segments, such as port vehicles, bulldozers and military vehicles?

A:	Multiple vehicle applications that strengthen the benefits can be proposed in one project. Projects proposals will be scored on the overall merit of the project and based on the information provided in the proposal.
· Is it possible to include a University facility to demonstrate the technology, even if the University is not in the Group I, II, III if the primary applicant is eligible for the application? 

A:	Research and development work, as well as laboratory work can be completed by any public or private entity and does not have a regional restriction. However, all vehicle demonstration work must fall into one of the three groups listed in the application manual (page 13).
25. [bookmark: I08F75E14A93B11E2BB17AE4955424172][bookmark: I08F75E15A93B11E2BB17AE4955424172][bookmark: I08F78520A93B11E2BB17AE4955424172][bookmark: I08F78521A93B11E2BB17AE4955424172][bookmark: I08F78522A93B11E2BB17AE4955424172][bookmark: I08F78523A93B11E2BB17AE4955424172][bookmark: I08F78524A93B11E2BB17AE4955424172][bookmark: I08F78525A93B11E2BB17AE4955424172][bookmark: I08F7D340A93B11E2BB17AE4955424172][bookmark: I08F7D342A93B11E2BB17AE4955424172][bookmark: I08F7FA50A93B11E2BB17AE4955424172][bookmark: I08F7FA51A93B11E2BB17AE4955424172][bookmark: I08F86F80A93B11E2BB17AE4955424172][bookmark: I08F86F81A93B11E2BB17AE4955424172]Q:	On slide 13: Integration and optimization of the natural gas engine to achieve economic and commercial viability, what does “integration and optimization” mean?
A: 	Integration is the process of successfully installing and validating the proposed engine technology (including storage) for the proposed application(s). Optimization is the best balance or solution to meet market requirements. 



26. Q:  Regarding the preference for renewable natural gas, what if we do not have access to RNG? 
A: 	The use of RNG for this solicitation is not required; however, its use is encouraged in order to maximize benefits. RNG as a transportation fuel can be procured through various retail sources such as Clean Energy, among others.
27. Q:	ARB has deadlines for off-road equipment to come into compliance. In an effort to meet ARB requirements prior to the GFO’s listed agreement end date of March 2020, can project be completed in March 2019? Can an earlier project end-term date be proposed?
A: 	Yes. While the agreement end date in the application manual is listed as March 2020 (page 9), applicants can propose a shorter project term.
28. Q:	Is there a minimum time period for demonstration efforts?
A: 	A minimum demonstration period is not specified in this solicitation. Applicants should determine the demonstration time and justify the length based on their project.
29. Q:	On slide 15, the language in the Application Manual has been changed to exclude emissions verification and now includes performance data during the demonstration period. What do we compare between natural gas off-road vehicles and existing off-road vehicles with equivalent engines?
[bookmark: _GoBack]A: 	Emissions information should be included as a part of the Commercialization and Emission Certification Plan, but data is not required to be collected during the demonstration period. Performance data collected during the demonstration portion of the project can include but is not limited to power, torque, fuel efficiency, and emissions.
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